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INTRODUCTION

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 is a federal civil rights statute, which provides that:

“No otherwise qualified individual with disabilities in the United States…shall solely by reason of his/her disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance or activity conducted by any Executive agency or by the United States Postal Service.” 29USC704. 

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR), of the U.S. Department of Education has issued some critical interpretations with regard to school district responsibilities in implementing Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.  Two significant changes are in the areas of graduation requirements and disciplining students with disabilities.  Moreover, since the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) is required to help resolve complaints of violations of federal law, parents are bringing Section 504 issues to ODE for resolution.

Parents, school staff, and school administrators have also requested that ODE provide ongoing technical assistance to school districts to assure compliance with the statute. The initial manual was the result of the work of special education administrators, experts and ODE staff.  This updated edition was created by ODE staff and experts. 

Notes on Language Usage:  

“Section 504” is used throughout this manual as shorthand for “Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.”

WHO IS PROTECTED UNDER SECTION 504?

“No otherwise qualified individual with disabilities in the United States…shall solely by reason of his/her disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance or activity conducted by any Executive agency or by the United States Postal Service.” 29USC704
Who is an individual with a disability under Section 504? 
There are three ways that a student may be considered an individual with a disability under Section 504.  A person is considered to have a disability under Section 504 if the student:

1. Has a physical or mental impairment, which substantially limits one or more major life activities.  The term does not cover children solely disadvantaged by cultural, environmental or economic factors.  Comment to 34CFR.104.3;

2. Has a record or history of such an impairment.  The term includes children who have been misclassified (e.g. a non-English speaking student who was mistakenly classified as having mental retardation); or

3. Is regarded as having such an impairment.  A student would be “regarded” as having a disability under Section 504 if, for example:  

a) The student has a physical or mental impairment that does not substantially limit a major life but is treated by the district as having such a limitation (e.g. a student who has scarring, a student who walks with a limp).

b) The student has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a major life activity only as a result of the attitudes of others towards such an impairment (e.g. a student who is obese).

c) The student has no physical or mental impairment but is treated by the district as having such an impairment (e.g. a student who tests positive with the HIV virus but has no physical effects from it).  34CFR104.3(j)

An eligibility team, consisting of school personnel who are knowledgeable about the child determines eligibility under Section 504.

Who is a “qualified” student with disabilities under Section 504?

All school-age children who are disabled under Section 504 are considered to be “qualified.  Preschool children (birth to 5) with disabilities who participate in federally funded programs such as early intervention/early childhood special education (EI/ECSE) and Head Start are also protected by Section 504.  34CFR104.3(k) 

What is a “major life activity?”
Major life activities include walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing, learning, working, caring for oneself and performing manual tasks.  The student’s disability need only substantially limit one major life activity for the student to be eligible.  34CFR104.3(j)
What is a “program or activity”?

The term includes all programs or activities of the ODE and all school districts receiving federal funds regardless of whether the specific program or activity involved is a direct recipient of federal funds. (e.g., If a district contracts with alternative education programs, the district must insure that a student with disabilities has an equal opportunity to participate in alternative education, even though the programs themselves do not receive any federal funds.)  34CFR104.3(t), Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1988 (PL 100-259).

Are students with medical or psychological diagnosis automatically (or almost always) considered disabled under Section 504?

No.  Students are only considered disabled under Section 504 if they have a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities.  The team considering eligibility needs to consider the medical and/or psychological evaluation information in determining whether the mental or physical impairment substantially limits one or more major life activities at school.

Are students with attention deficit disorder (ADD) or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) considered disabled under Section 504?

Sometimes.  In 1991, the Department of Education acknowledged that attention deficit disorder (ADD) and attention deficit hyperactivity disorder (ADHD) are impairments that can be the basis for eligibility under either Section 504 or the IDEA.  Joint Policy Memorandum, 18 IDELR 116 (OSERS 1991).

In 1993, the OCR acknowledged that some students with ADD or ADHD may have a disability within the meaning of Section 504, while others may not.  The qualifying factor is whether the student’s ADD or ADHD is sufficiently severe that it substantially limits a major life activity.  

OCR Memorandum, 19 IDLER 876 (1993).

Is pregnancy or teen parenting considered a physical impairment under Section 504?

No, neither pregnancy or teen parenting is considered an impairment under either Section 504 or the ADA.  However, if a student suffers medical complications from pregnancy that substantially limit a major life activity, then the pregnancy may be a temporary disability under Section 504 and the ADA.  Each situation should be determined on a case-by-case basis, and an individual determination should be made.

What does “substantially limits” mean?

“Substantially limits” means the student must be unable to or is significantly restricted as to the condition, manner or duration under which he or she can perform the major life activity as compared to the average person.  This and the factors the eligibility team should consider when making a decision include:

· Nature/severity of the impairment,

· Duration/expected duration of the impairment,

· Permanent/long term impact resulting from the impairment.

Recently, the US Supreme Court considered this question in several employment discrimination cases and determined that “limitation” is determined based on functional use with the intervention.  In the education context, this would mean that, for a student with ADHD who is taking medication for the ADHD, the team would look at the functional limitations of the student with medication (rather that the functional limitations of the student without medication).  This is probably true even if, occasionally, the student comes to school without medication.  This would not be true if a parent refused medication for a child.  In that circumstance, the team would need to look at the functional limitations of the student without medication.

WHAT OTHER LAWS PROTECT STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES?
Is Section 504 the only federal law that addresses the rights of students with disabilities?

No.  The Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) also address the rights of students with disabilities.

What are the main differences between Section 504, the IDEA, and the ADA?
The IDEA is a funding statute that assists states in meeting the educational needs of students with disabilities.  It has very detailed procedural rights and detailed state and district requirements.  The IDEA specifically lists categories of disabilities that render a child eligible for special education.  These categories include:  autism spectrum disorder, visual impairment (including blindness), hearing impairment (including deafness), specific learning disability, communication impairment, emotional disturbance, other health impairment, orthopedic impairment, and traumatic brain injury.  To be eligible for special education services under IDEA, the student’s disability must have an adverse impact on the student’s educational performance and must result in a need for special education.  

Section 504 is primarily a nondiscrimination statute.  It has less detailed procedural rights and state and district requirements that the IDEA.  Section 504 does not have a categorical listing of disabilities.  While Section 504 requires that the condition "substantially limit a major life activity" such as walking (which limits educational access), it need not necessarily adversely affect the student's educational performance.  Also, a student may be considered disabled under Section 504 even though the student does not need special education services.  

The ADA is similar to Section 504 in that it is a nondiscrimination statute.  

For more information, see the Comparison Chart on page 11.

If a student is eligible under the IDEA and 504, does the district need to develop an IEP and a Section 504 plan for the student?

No.  The student’s IEP should be sufficient, as long as it incorporates both sets of issues.  For example, a student may be eligible under the IDEA due to a specific learning disability, and also have a medical condition that requires an emergency health protocol at school.  This student would not meet the criteria for other health impairment because the student does not need special education services as a result of the health impairment.  Even so, the medical condition is severe enough that it is considered life threatening and thus impacts a major life activity.  The student’s IEP should state that the student needs an emergency medical protocol for the medical condition.  The implementation of an IEP, developed in accordance with the IDEA, is a means of meeting the standard of providing an appropriate education plan under Section 504.  34CFR104.33(b)(2)

Are students who are eligible under the IDEA also considered disabled under Section 504?

In most cases, yes.  Typically, the relationship is pictured like this:







Some 504 experts speculate that recent U.S. Supreme Court decisions may result in some IDEA-eligible students not meeting the “substantially limits one or more basic life activities” standard.  For example, a student with a specific learning disability in math calculation may not be considered to have a “substantial limitation” on learning, as math is only one component of learning.  Courts have not yet applied the new standards articulated by the US Supreme court to a school age Section 504 situation.

Are students who are considered disabled under Section 504 also eligible for special education under the IDEA?

Not necessarily.  As stated above, some students may have a disability that substantially limits a major life activity (such as a severe food allergy or a mobility impairment) but does not result in the need for special education services.  These students may be considered disabled under Section 504 but not under the IDEA.  
Are students who are evaluated for IDEA and found not eligible automatically (or almost always) considered disabled under Section 504?

Not necessarily.  Students are only considered disabled under Section 504 if they have a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities at school.  However, teams need to be aware of the Section 504 disability definition and, when appropriate, consider whether students are eligible under Section 504 when they do not meet IDEA eligibility criteria.

If a student is eligible under the IDEA and 504, does the district need to develop an IEP and a Section 504 plan for the student?

No.  The student’s IEP should be sufficient, as long as it incorporates both sets of issues.  For example, a student may be eligible under the IDEA due to a specific learning disability, and also have a medical condition that requires an emergency health protocol at school.  This student would not meet the criteria for other health impairment because the student does not need special education services as a result of the health impairment.  Even so, the medical condition is severe enough that it is considered life threatening and thus impacts a major life activity.  The student’s IEP should state that the student needs an emergency medical protocol for the medical condition.  The implementation of an IEP plan developed in accordance with the IDEA is a means of meeting the standard of providing an appropriate education plan under Section 504. 34CFR103.33 (b)(2)
When will a student with ADD or ADHD be eligible under IDEA rather than just under Section 504?

A student with ADD or ADHD will be eligible for services and protection under IDEA as a student with an “other health impairment” if the team concludes that the ADD/ADHD results in limited alertness, which adversely effects educational performance, and results in the need for special education services. 34CFR300.7(b)(80) and OAR 581-015-0051.  
In addition, a student with ADD or ADHD also may be eligible for services on the basis of having a “specific learning disability” under 34CFR300.7(b)(10) and 34CFR300.541 or “emotional disturbance” under 34CFR300.7(b)(9).  See also OAR 581-015-0051.

IDEA, SECTION 504 and ADA COMPARISON CHART
	
	Section 504 

of the Rehabilitation Act
	Title II of the American Disabilities Act
	Individual with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)

	Type
	 Civil Rights Act
	 Civil Rights Act
	Education Act

	Title
	The Rehabilitation Act of 1973
	Americans with Disabilities Act

(Title II)
	Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

	Funding
	No federal funding.  No additional funding beyond basic school support.


	Federal funding formula based on student population, number of students with disabilities, and poverty factor.  Increased state basic school support.

	Administrator
	Section 504/ADA Coordinator or other appropriate Civil Rights Coordinator.
	Special education director or other appropriate administrator

	Service Plan
	Section 504 plan or similar planning document
	No individual service plan component
	Individualized Education Program (IEP) or Individualized Family Service Plan (IFSP)

	Purpose
	A broad civil rights law that protects the rights of individuals with disabilities in programs and activities that receive federal financial assistance.
	A broad civil rights law that applies to public entities and protects the rights of individuals with disabilities without regard to federal financial assistance.
	To assist states in meeting the special education needs of students with disabilities.

	Population
	Disabled students who have or have had a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits a major life activity, or are regarded as disabled by others.
	Identifies specific categories of disabilities.

	Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)
	Requires the provision of a free appropriate education.  “Appropriate” means an education comparable to the education provided to non-disabled students. 
	Does not address FAPE.  
	Requires the provision of a free appropriate education.  “Appropriate” means a program designed to provide meaningful educational benefit.

	Accessibility
	Has regulations regarding building and program accessibility.
	Requires that modifications must be made if necessary to provide access to a free appropriate education

	Notice
	Requires notice to the parent or guardian with respect to identification, evaluation, and placement.


	No specific notice requirements
	Requires prior written notice to the parent or guardian with respect to identification, evaluation, and placement

	Evaluations
	Evaluation draws on information from a variety of sources in the area of concern; decisions made by a group knowledgeable about the student, evaluation data, and placement options

Requires periodic reevaluations

Reevaluation is required before a significant change in placement.
	No specific evaluation requirements
	Requires a full comprehensive evaluation assessing all areas related to the suspected disability.  

Requires evaluation by a knowledgeable team. Requires informed consent before an evaluation is conducted

Requires reevaluations to be conducted at least every 3 years.

	Independent Educational Evaluations
	No provision for independent evaluations at district expense.  District should consider any such evaluations presented
	Does not address.
	Provides for independent educational evaluation at district expense if parent disagrees with evalution obtained by school.

	Placement
	A meeting and evaluation are required for change of placement.
	Does not address
	An IEP/placement meeting must be conducted before any change of placement.  Must give prior written notice of change in placement.

	Grievance Procedure
	Requires districts with more than 15 employees to designate an employee to be responsible for assuring district compliance with Section 504 and provide a grievance procedure for parents, students, and employees
	Similar to 504.
	Does not require a grievance procedure, nor a compliance officer

	Due Process
	Requires impartial hearings for parents or guardians who disagree with identification, evaluation, or placement decisions, or provision of FAPE to the student.
	Does not address.
	Requires impartial; hearings for parents or guardians who disagree with the identification, evaluation, or placement decisions or provision of FAPE to the student.

	Federal Jurisdiction
	US Department of Education

Office for Civil Rights
	US Department of Education

Office of Civil Rights
	US Department of Education

Office of Special Education Services.

	State Jurisdiction
	Oregon Department of Education


	Oregon Department of Education


	Oregon Department of Education

Office of Special Education



	Local

Jurisdiction
	Local School District
	Local School

District
	Local School District


WHAT IS DISCRIMINATION OR DISABILITY HARASSMENT?
Discrimination under Section 504 occurs when a recipient of federal funds:

1. Denies a person with a disability the opportunity to participate in or benefit from an aid, benefit or service which is afforded non-disabled students.  

2. Fails to afford the student with a disability an opportunity to participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit, or service that is equal to that afforded others.

3. Afford a qualified handicapped person an opportunity to participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit, or service that is not equal to that provided to others.  



Comment to 34CFR104.4(b)(2).  

4. Provides different or separate aids, benefits or services unless such action is necessary to be as effective as the aids, benefits or services provided to non-disabled students (e.g. segregating students in separate classes, schools or facilities, unless necessary).

5. Aids or perpetuates discrimination by providing significant assistance to an agency, organization or person that discriminates on the basis of disabilities (e.g. sponsoring a student organization that excludes persons with disabilities).

6. Denies a person with disabilities the opportunity to participate as a member of a planning or advisory board strictly because of his/her disability.

7. Otherwise limits the enjoyment of any right, privilege, advantage or opportunity enjoyed by others (e.g. prohibiting a person with a physical disability from using a service dog at school).

8. In determining the site or location of a facility, makes selections, which effectively excludes persons with disabilities, denies them the benefits of, or otherwise subjects them to discrimination.  
Examples:  

· Has a practice of refusing to allow any student on an IEP the opportunity to be on the honor roll.

· Allows non-disabled students to participate in an inter-district transfer arrangement, but not students with disabilities.

· Does not make necessary arrangements for a child with a disability to attend a field trip, outdoor school, or other similar activity.

· Locates a magnet program in a school that is not accessible to students with mobility impairments.

· Does not appropriately use statewide assessment options to allow students with disabilities alternative methods for demonstrating that they meet benchmark or CIM (certificate of initial mastery) standards.

· Refuses to dispense medication to a student who could not attend school otherwise, or does not have an effective system for dispensing medication.

· Frequently moves classes for students with disabilities from building to building while regular education classes are not moved.  

· Applies an Oregon School Activities Association policy that conditions interscholastic sports eligibility on the student's receiving passing grades without regard to the student's disability.

· Automatically schedules lunch and recess for special education classes at different times than for other classes.

· Automatically provides special transportation for students with disabilities without determining, on an individual basis, that special transportation is necessary.

· Locates special education classes in more remote locations in the building limiting access to non-disabled peers.
· Allows students with disabilities to be located in inferior facilities, such as trailers, wings in basements and unnecessarily restrictive classrooms due to a lack of classroom space. 
· Deny parents and students request for an exemption of any state assessment requirement a students cannot complete due to his or her disability.  
OAR 581-022-0612

· Deny students with disabilities access to recess, assemblies, or other non-academic activities or denied access to lunch based on disability-related behavior.
WHAT ARE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 504?
To be in compliance with Section 504 and state non-discrimination requirements for schools, school districts must do the following:

1. Designate an employee to coordinate compliance with Section 504 (if there are more than 15 employees). 34CFR104.7(a).  
2. Provide grievance procedures to resolve complaints of discrimination. 34CFR104.7(b) (if more than 15 employees) and OAR 581-21-049 (all school districts must have written grievance procedures to resolve discrimination complaints).  
3. Provide notice to students, parents, employees, unions, and professional organizations of nondiscrimination in admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs or activities (if more than 15 employees).  Notice must also specify the responsible employee.  Notice must be included in student/parent handbook. 34CFR104.8.
NOTE:  The Section 504 regulation states a district must adopt and implement procedures to ensure that interested persons, including vision and hearing impaired, can obtain information regarding the existence and location of services, activities, and facilities that are accessible to and usable by, person with disabilities.  

What are the responsibilities of a Section 504 coordinator?

Typically, a 504 coordinator will:

· Ensure the school district’s non-discrimination policies are up-to-date, posted, and distributed as required.

· Ensure staff understand their responsibilities under Section 504.

· Ensure there is a system in each school building for responding to 504 concerns in a timely and appropriate manner.

· Establish consistent procedures, district-wide, for notification of rights, referral, evaluation, planning and implementation for students with disabilities under Section 504.

· Stay informed about developments in both educational interventions and legal requirements for students with disabilities under Section 504 and provide training to other staff in these areas?

· Be responsible for the district’s 504 complaint process/grievance policy, investigate and respond to parent complaints/grievances.

· Coordinate responses to OCR investigations.  Be familiar with options for resolution, such as the Early Complaint Resolution procedure (also called Resolution between the Parties).

This manual may help 504 coordinators by offering sample forms and procedures that can be used or modified to address specific district issues.  (see Appendix).
Whom should a district appoint as the 504 Coordinator?

The district may designate the personnel director, student services director, or curriculum director, or other person knowledgeable about the Section 504 requirements to be the 504 Coordinator.  Sometimes the District will consolidate the coordination of all civil rights non-discrimination implementation (Section 504, ADA, Title VI, Title IX, etc.) in one position – an equal educational opportunity compliance officer for the district.  In most cases, this person may wear other hats as well, often related to implementation of federal programs such as Title I and services for English-language learners.  

Although districts may be tempted to appoint the special education director as Section 504 coordinator, this may send the message to staff and parents that Section 504 “belongs” to special education.  To the contrary, Section 504 primarily involves access to the district’s regular education program.  

What should be included in a school’s grievance procedure?
A grievance procedure needs to include the following components:

· Notice to all members of the school community of the grievance procedures

· A description of the process for filing complaints

· Adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation of complaints

· Prompt resolution of complaints, with written findings, conclusions and, if required, corrective action

· Protection of the rights of the parties who are using the grievance procedure.

· Reasonable timelines for each step of the grievance process.

Grievance procedures may include the following:

· Step 1:  Informal Discussion with Coordinator

· Step 2:  Written complaint

· Step 3:  Appeal to School Board

· Step 4:  Complainant may seek review by ODE (under OARs)

See Appendix F for a sample Complaint/Grievance Process.

WHAT ARE PROGRAM ACCESSIBILITY REQUIRMENTS OF SECTION 504?

What is program access?

The ability to use a building, communicate with others, participate or receive the benefits of programs or activities, including extracurricular activities and nonacademic services constitute program access in school settings.

What is a district’s responsibility to make building accessible?

Facilities that were constructed prior to June 3, 1977 need not necessarily be made accessible so long as the program or activity, viewed in its entirety, is readily accessible to persons with disabilities. 34 C.F.R. 104.22 . It would not be necessary to make every high school in a district accessible.  However, the student must be afforded an equal opportunity to enjoy the full range of services offered by the district.  For example, if a district runs a magnet school with specialized studies, students may not be denied access to the program merely because of accessibility problems.  It would not be discriminatory, however, if a district contracts with a private alternative education program that cannot accept students needing special education because of the lack of a qualified teacher so long as the district is able to afford special education students a comparable program elsewhere.

See Appendix H for a chart outlining Building Accessibility Requirements.

Section 504 gives alternative methods districts may use to make an existing facility conform to the program accessibility requirement of the law.  34CFR104.22(b)(g)  

These alternatives include:
a. redesign of equipment;

b. reassignment of aides;

c. alteration of existing facilities;

Section 504 does not require school districts to “make each of its existing facilities or every part of a facility accessible to and unusable by disabled person.”  34CFR104.22(a).
Under Section 504 carrying a student to make an existing facility accessible for a mobility impaired student is prohibited. This includes transporting a student up and down stairs.  34CFR104.22(b).
OCR advises the use of a Stair-Trac mechanical device for individuals in wheelchairs is also prohibited. The device requires assistance from another individual to load and unload the wheelchair into the device.

How does the OCR view portable classrooms on the grounds of an existing facility?
The OCR considers new temporary or portable facilities to be new construction. Thus the facility accessibility, rather than the program accessibility, is required.  34CFR104.23 
What accessibility standards apply to newly constructed playgrounds? 

Accessibility of playgrounds is governed by the general nondiscrimination on the basis of inaccessibility provisions of 34CFR104.21 and 28CFR35.149.

The OCR considers at least three items in analyzing the program accessibility of a playground:

1. Is the playground route accessible, firm, stable, and slip resistant?

2. Are there a range of activities accessible to individuals with various disabilities through the use of ramps or transfer systems?

3. Is the surface beneath the equipment firm, stable, slip resistant and resilient?

Short of major modifications, what can a district do?
A district can redesign equipment, reassign classes or other services to accessible buildings, assign aides to students, deliver services at alternate accessible sites, or alter existing facilities.  So long as there are other methods that are as effective in achieving compliance, a district need not undertake structural changes to a building. 34CFR104.22(b).

What are some examples of what is not an acceptable accommodation?

· Carrying a student upstairs; 

· In a larger district, making one particular building or part of a building accessible and placing all students with mobility impairments at this location. Comment to 34CFR104.22.
· Having students with disabilities eat on a separate floor due to an inaccessible cafeteria; 

· Denying certain programs such as music, art or assemblies because these programs are inaccessible.

What is the district’s obligation for new buildings or additions?
Buildings or additions constructed since June 3, 1977 must be designed and constructed to allow persons with disabilities the ability to access and use them readily. 34CFR104.23(a). 

For example, multilevel buildings should have ramps or elevators, accessible bathrooms, doorways constructed wide enough to fit wheelchairs.  Contractors should be familiar with accessibility requirements.

What is a district’s obligation when a building is altered?

To the maximum extent feasible, all facilities which are altered after June 3, 1977, must be altered to allow accessibility and usability by persons with disabilities. 34CFR104.23(b). 

 For example, if a school district adds on a wing to a building, the wing must be made accessible.  Or, if a storage room is modified into a classroom, modifications, such as widening the doorway, must be made.

What is meant by the phrase “to the maximum extent feasible”?

This provision covers the occasional instance where the nature of an existing facility is such as to make it impractical or prohibitively expensive to renovate in a manner that results in its being entirely barrier-free.  However, in all of these instances, the alteration should provide the maximum amount of physical accessibility that is feasible. Comment to 34 C.F.R. 104.23(b).
Who should a district call regarding technical assistance on accessibility issues?

Technical assistance to districts on how to fulfill the requirements of Section 504 may be obtained by calling:

The Northwest Disability and Business Technical Assistance Center

PO Box 9046

Olympia, WA  98507-9046

1-800-949-4232

Oregon Department of Justice

1162 Court Street, NE

Salem, OR  97310

503-378-4400

Additional assistance can be provided by: 

Northwest Regional Educational Laboratory 

101 S. W. Main, Suite 500

Portland, Oregon 97402

(503) 275-9500

U.S. Department of Education

Office for Civil Rights

915 Second Avenue, Room 3310

Seattle, WA 98174-1099

(206) 220-7900

TDD (206) 220-1909

WHAT ARE FAPE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 504?
What is “FAPE?”

FAPE stands for “free appropriate public education.”  Both Section 504 and the IDEA require FAPE to students who are considered disabled under those statutes.

The regulation states: 

“A recipient that operates a public elementary or secondary education program shall provide a free and appropriate public education to each qualified disabled person who is in the recipient’s jurisdiction, regardless of the nature or severity of the person’s disability.”  

FAPE is the provision of educational and related services without cost to the student with a disability or to his or her parents or guardian, except for those fees that are imposed on non-disabled persons or their parents or guardians.

Under Section 504, “appropriate” means providing regular or special education and related aids and services that are designed to meet individual needs of disabled students as adequately as the needs of non-disabled students are met.  33CRF104.33(b)(1)(i)
Is there a “child find” requirement under Section 504?

Yes.  “Child find” is the process of locating and identifying students with disabilities.  Under Section 504, school districts must annually identify and locate all section 504 qualified children who are not receiving a FAPE and take appropriate steps to notify their parents and guardians.  34CFR104.32(a).
What are the procedural requirements for FAPE under Section 504?
The procedural safeguards afforded to parents under Section 504 are less detailed than those under IDEA.  Each District shall establish and implement, with respect to actions regarding identification, evaluation or educational placement of persons who, because of disability, need or are believed to need special instruction or related services, a system of procedural safeguards that include:

· Annual notice to students with disabilities and their parents or guardians of their rights under Section 504, including the right to request an impartial hearing.  Notice includes:  child find, parents rights, prior notice of evaluations and meetings, and notice of the results/actions taken at Section 504 meetings.

34CFR104.32(b). 
See sample notice of rights in Appendix A.

· An opportunity for the parents or guardian of the person to examine relevant student educational records.  

· The right to an impartial hearing if the parent or guardian disagrees with the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of the student with a disability.  The ODE has an administrative rule for due process hearings under Section 504.  See OAR 581-015-0109.
· A review procedure (for appeal of impartial due process hearing decisions).
     34CFR104.36

If the district is providing a FAPE, is the district responsible for a private placement for the student? 

No.  If the district affords a free appropriate education to a student but the parent chooses to place the child elsewhere, the district is not responsible to pay for the out-of-district placement.   34CFR104.33(c)(4).  For example, if the district's program is appropriate and the parent places the child in a private school, the district is not responsible for the student's tuition.

Is transportation required as part of FAPE?

If a district places a student in a program not operated by the district, the district must assure that adequate transportation to and from the program is provided at no greater cost than the parent would have paid to transport the child to the district.  34CFR104.33(c)(2)  

If a district provides transportation to all its students within a certain geographic area, it may not discriminate in its provision of transportation to students with disabilities. 34CFR104.4(b)(I)
If a district proposes to terminate a qualified student's bus transportation for inappropriate bus behavior, the district must first determine the relationship between the student's behavior and the student’s disability and provide the parent with notice of his/her rights.  

Note that the length of the bus rides for students with disabilities should not be longer than that of non-disabled students.  34CFR104.33(c)(3)

Do the FAPE requirements apply to students who do not currently have a mental or physical impairment, but who have a history of such impairment or are regarded as having such impairment?

No.  The FAPE requirements under Section 504 only apply to students who currently have a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more basic life activity.  The FAPE requirements do not apply to students who have a history of a disability (e.g., were formerly identified under 504 or IDEA) or who are regarded as having a disability but do not have a current impairment that substantially limits a life activity (e.g. in remission or asymptomatic AIDS or HIV).  

However, the other nondiscrimination provisions of Section 504 apply to all three categories (currently impaired, history of impairment, regarded as having an impairment).

Can you give some examples of FAPE violations under Section 504?

Here are some examples:

· Not implementing a student’s IEP or Section 504 plan.  Sometimes this problem arises because staff (including substitutes) are not informed of their responsibilities for implementing the plan.  Sometimes teachers may not implement a plan because they disagree with the plan.  Sometimes districts do not arrange for substitute educational assistants necessary for implementation of services to the student.
· Not addressing disability-related needs (e.g. a seizure disorder that requires a health management protocol, a behavior problem that requires a crisis management plan, etc.).

· Not providing related aids and services, such as transportation, without charge to the parent or guardian.

Do the FAPE requirements apply to students who do not currently have a mental or physical impairment, but who have a history of such impairment or are regarded as having such impairment?

No.  The FAPE requirements under Section 504 only apply to students who currently have a mental or physical impairment that substantially limits one or more basic life activity.  The FAPE requirements do not apply to students who have a history of a disability (e.g., were formerly identified under 504 or IDEA) or who are regarded as having a disability but do not have a current impairment that substantially limits a life activity (e.g. in remission or asymptomatic AIDS or HIV).  

However, the other nondiscrimination provisions of Section 504 apply to all three categories (currently impaired, history of impairment, regarded as having an impairment).

IDEA & 504 QUALIFYING CHART









WHAT ARE PROCEDURES FOR DISCIPLINING STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES?

The FAPE requirement of Section 504 includes appropriate procedures for discipline.  The procedures for discipline are designed to meet the needs of students with disabilities as well as the needs of non-disabled students.  In addition, students with identified disabilities may not be expelled or suspended from school for more than 10 days for misconduct that was a manifestation of the student’s disability. 34CFR104.33(a)
As a nondiscrimination statute, Section 504 prohibits districts from disciplining students more harshly, than non-disabled students on the basis of disability. 34CFR104.4 
In general, suspension and expulsion of students with disabilities have been treated similarly under both IDEA and Section 504. In 1987, the Office of Special Education and Rehabilitation Services (OSERS) and the Office for Civil Rights (OCR) issued a joint memorandum reflecting their commitment “to the principal that interpretations of the IDEA and Section 504 should not lead to inconsistent obligations being imposed upon states and other departmental recipients.”

When are individual behavior plans required under Section 504?

Under Section 504, the OCR requires districts to develop individual behavior plans for a student with a disability when the student’s behavioral difficulties interferes with his/her ability to benefit from his/her education.  In 1997, the OCR stated its standard for when a district must develop an individual behavior plan:

“[W]hen a student who is disabled within the meaning of Section 504 manifests repeated or serious misconduct such that modifying the child’s negative behavior becomes a significant component of what actually takes place in the child’s educational program, [a district] is required to develop an individual behavioral management plan.” 25IDELR759, 761
Is a “manifestation determination” required?
Yes.  School districts cannot suspend or expel a student with a disability under Section 504 for more than ten consecutive school days in a school year.  Thus, school districts must determine whether a student’s behavior is a manifestation of the student’s disability before suspending a student with disabilities for more than 10 days.  This is called a manifestation determination. 

This rule also applies to cumulative removals of more than ten days if the removals constitute a pattern of removals.  A pattern is determined based on the total days of removal, the length of each removal, and the proximity of removals to one another. 34CFR104.35(a), OCR Staff Memorandum, 16, EHLR 491 (1989).
Section 504 does not provide a specific set of questions to be considered as does the IDEA.  The set of questions under IDEA provide an appropriate format for considering the “manifestation” question under Section 504.  These questions (adapted for 504 students) are:

· Were the child’s Section 504 plan and placement appropriate in relationship to the behavior subject to the disciplinary action?

· Were special education services, supplementary aids and services, and behavior intervention strategies provided consistent with the child’s Section 504 plan and placements?

· Did the child’s disability impair the ability of the child to understand the impact and consequences of the behavior subject to disciplinary action?

· Did the child’s disability impair the ability of the child to control the behavior subject to disciplinary action?

See Appendix E for a sample Manifestation Determination Worksheet.

Does Section 504 have a stay-put provision that parents can invoke to stay disciplinary action?

No, unlike the IDEA, Section 504 does not have a specific “say-put” requirement. However, the OCR does have procedural safeguards for the protection of students and their parents in connection with the identification, evaluation, and placement of students with disabilities who need special instruction and related services.  Districts are required to evaluate students before initial and subsequent significant changes in placement. Essentially a district’s Section 504 disciplinary system should base decisions on an individual case-by-case basis, which includes involving the parents or guardians. 34CFR104.3.  
Can the district remove a student from school if the student brings a gun to school?

Yes.  The Gun Free Schools Act applies to students covered under Section 504 to the same extent it does to students who are IDEA eligible. The Gun-Free Schools Act (20 U.S.C. §  8921-8923) requires districts to expel for at least one year any student brings a “weapon” to school. However, state law must allow a district’s chief administering officer to modify the expulsion requirement for a student on a case-by-case basis.  Considering the impact of the student’s disability on their behavior is one of those considerations that must be made on a case-by-case basis.  

Gun Free Schools Act:

If a manifestation determination is required, districts should follow the IDEA protocol.  If no manifestation determination is required, districts may follow their own procedures district’s should follow it’s own rules.

WHAT ARE EVALUATION AND PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 504?

Does Section 504 require an evaluation before placement?

Yes.  If a student needs or is believed to need special education or related services, the district must evaluate the student prior to initial placement in a regular or special education program and before any "significant change in placement.”  34CFR104.35(a).

What evaluation procedures must be followed?

The district must establish policies and procedures for evaluation and placement which assure that tests and other evaluation materials:

· Have been validated and are administered by trained personnel.
· Are tailored to assess educational need and are not merely based on IQ scores

· Reflect aptitude or achievement or whatever else the tests purport to measure and do not reflect the student's impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills (unless the test is designed to measure these particular deficits).  34CFR104.35(b)

Does Section 504 require schools to develop a written plan for eligible students?
No, but it is helpful to document the plan for addressing the student’s disability.  This plan, sometimes called a 504 plan or accommodation plan, provides a common basis of understanding for staff implementing the plan and for parents to know how the school is addressing the student’s disability-related needs at school.  The plan is also a demonstration that the school is complying with the requirements under Section 504.

What placement procedures must be followed?

As with IDEA, in interpreting evaluation data and making placement decisions, the district must:

a.
Draw upon information from a variety of sources;

b. Assure that all information is documented and considered;

c. Ensure that the placement decision is made by a group of persons including those who are knowledgeable about the child, the meaning of the evaluation data and placement options; and

d. Ensure that the student is educated with his/her non-disabled peers to the maximum extent appropriate.  34CFR104.35(a).
WHAT ARE PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING DISPUTES?
An individual person or an organization may file a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights of the US Department of Education.  An OCR complaint must be filed, in writing, within 180 days after the violation has occurred.

Anyone filing a formal complaint with OCR should submit in writing the following information in a letter (or on the Discrimination Complaint Form available from the OCR Regional offices):

· Your name and address (a telephone number where you may be reached during daytime hours is helpful, but not required);

· A general description of the person(s) or class of persons injured by the alleged discriminatory act(s) (names of the injured person(s) are not required);

· The name and location of the institute that committed the alleged discriminatory act(s); and

· A description of the alleged discriminatory act(s) in sufficient detail to enable OCR to understand what occurred, when it occurred, and the basis for the alleged discrimination (race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age).

A recipient may not retaliate against any person who has made a complaint, testified, assisted, or participated in any manner in an investigation or proceeding under the above listed four statues listed above.

The address for the Office for Civil Rights is:

US Department of Education

Office for Civil Rights

Jackson Federal Building

915 Second Avenue, Room 3310

Seattle, WA  98174-1099

Telephone:  (206) 220-7900

Fax:  (206) 220-7887

TDD:  (206) 220-7907

E-mail:  OCRSeattle@ed.gov

http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/index.html

What are the procedures for a hearing under Section 504 in Oregon?
1. The parent or guardian of a student with a disability may file a written request for a hearing with the State Superintendent of Public Instruction.

2. The hearing must concern the identification, evaluation, provision of a free appropriate education, or education placement of the student with a disability that the parent or guardian alleges to be in violation of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

3. When a hearing is requested, the ODE will appoint a hearing officer.  Usually, the parties will participate in the selection of a hearing officer from the hearing officer panel.  ODE currently has an arrangement with the Central Hearing Officer Panel to conduct both IDEA and Section 504 hearings.  The school district involved in the hearing is responsible for the costs of the hearing.

4. A parent or guardian who files for a hearing under Section 504 can also seek due process remedies under the IDEA, if available.

5. Section 504 does not have a “stay put” provision like the IDEA.  School districts can implement a change in placement even if the parent or guardian requests a hearing.  

6. Unlike the IDEA, Section 504 does not provide for the parent’s choice, at no cost, of an written or electronic verbatim record of the hearing.  

What is considered retaliation under Section 504?

Section 504 prohibits anyone from attempting to thwart the exercises of rights granted by the law to individuals with disabilities.  Title VI regulations at 45 CFR 80.6(e), incorporated into Section 504 by 34CFR104.61 is an anti-retaliation provision which is broad based in scope. The regulation prohibits a range of acts termed intimidatory or retaliatory. This prohibition includes acts that “intimidate, threaten, coerce or discriminate against any individual for the purpose of interfering with any rights he has under Section 504.” In addition, acts of intimidation, retaliation, etc., taken against an individual because he has filed a complaint, or testified or otherwise participated in an OCR investigation, are also prohibited. Not only is the school prohibited from taking any retaliatory action, all other persons are also prohibited from any retaliatory action.

What must a individual prove to establish retaliation?
OCR typically uses a multi-step analysis under which a complainant has the burden of establishing the following four elements of his claim:

· The complainant engaged in a protected activity.

· The complainant suffered an adverse action around the same time.

· The district was aware of the complainant’s protected activity.

· There is evidence of a casual connection (nexus) between the protected activity and the adverse action. 
APPENDIX A

PARENT/STUDENT RIGHTS IN IDENTIFICATION,

EVALUATION AND PLACEMENT

Please Keep This Explanation for Future Reference

(Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973)

This document describes the rights granted by federal law to students with disabilities.  The intent of the law is to keep you fully informed concerning decisions about your child and to inform you of your rights if you disagree with any of these decisions.

You have the right to:

1. Have your child take part in, and receive benefits from public education programs without discrimination because of his/her disability;

2. Have the school district advise you of your rights under federal law. 
  

3. Receive notice with respect to identification, evaluation, or placement of your child;

4. Have your child receive a free appropriate public education.  This includes the right to be educated with non-disabled students to the maximum extent appropriate.  It also includes the provision of regular education or special education and related aids and services that are designed to meet the individual needs of students with disabilities as adequately as the needs of non-disabled students are met. 

5. Have your child educated in facilities and receive services comparable to those provided non-disabled students.

6. Have evaluation, educational, and placement decisions made based upon a variety of information sources, and by persons who know the student, the evaluation data, and placement options;

7. Have transportation provided to and from a district initiated alternative placement setting at no greater cost to you than would be incurred if the student were placed in a program operated by the district;

8.   Have your child be given an equal opportunity to participate in nonacademic and extracurricular activities offered by the district;

9.  Examine all relevant records relating to decisions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, educational program, and placement;

10.  Obtain copies of educational records at a reasonable cost unless the fee would effectively deny you access to the records;

11.  A response from the school district to reasonable requests for explanations and interpretations of your child's records;

12.  Request amendment of your child's educational records if there is reasonable cause to believe that they are inaccurate, misleading or otherwise in violation of the privacy rights of your child.  If the school district refuses this request for amendment, it shall notify you within a reasonable time, and advise you of the right to a hearing;

13.  Request mediation or an impartial due process hearing related to decisions or actions regarding your child's identification, evaluation, educational program or placement.  You and the student may take part in the hearing and have an attorney represent you.  Hearing requests must be made to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, Oregon Department of Education, 255 Capitol Street, NE, Salem, Oregon 97310-0290, pursuant to OAR 581-15-109;

14.   File a written grievance following the district’s grievance or complaint procedure.

The person in this district who is responsible for assuring that the district complies with Section 504 is:

Name:


Telephone No.


APPENDIX B

Manifestation Determination Worksheet for 504 Eligible Students


Student’s Full Name:_________________________________   Date:_________________

The above named student has been referred for potential eligibility under Section 504 due to a physical or mental impairment.  Please complete the following information and return to the person indicated below.  If the person indicated is not the student’s parent, a Release of Information Consent form is attached.  Thank you for your information and timeliness!

1.  Medical Diagnosis


a.
Is the disability/impairment temporary?  _____Yes   _____No

b If temporary, what is the anticipated duration?  _____________________

2.  Which major life activities are affected?  How?

	_______ Walking
	________ Speaking
	_______ Seeing

	_______ Breathing
	________ Self-Care
	_______ Learning

	_______ Hearing
	________ Manual Tasks
	_______ Working 


Explain:  _______________________________________________________________

3. Medical Treatment Plan (include medications and/or assistive devices):

4. Recommendations or additional comments:

_______________________________  _________________________________  ___________

Signature of Physician                     Printed Name                                      Date

Please return to:

_______________________________  _____________________________________________

Name/Title                                       School



C:  Review of Disciplinary Records

(Attach additional pages as necessary)

1.  Has the behavioral incident or similar behavior occurred in the past?


2.  What is the additional behavioral history of the student?  (Including severity, setting, and frequency)?


3.  What is the history of behavioral intervention?  (Include a description of how long the behavior has been occurring prior to interventions, settings where interventions have been applied, and the results of the behavioral techniques employed to date.)


4.  Did the child exhibit similar behavior in the past that was related to the disability?  (If so, provide the approximate date(s), specific behavior, and resulting discipline.)



D:  Determination

Based on the above factors, is the student’s behavior in this specific instance a manifestation of the student’s disability?


_____YES

_____NO

	POSITION
	SIGNATURE
	AGREE
	DISAGREE

	
	
	
	

	504 Plan Coordinator
	_________________________
	_______
	__________

	
	
	
	

	Person Knowledgeable about Evaluation
	_________________________
	_______
	__________

	
	
	
	

	District Representative
	_________________________
	_______
	__________

	
	
	
	

	Parent or Guardian
	_________________________
	_______
	__________

	
	
	
	

	Teacher
	_________________________
	_______
	__________

	
	
	
	

	Other
	_________________________
	_______
	__________






APPENDIX C

REQUEST FOR MEDICAL INFORMATION

FOR SECTION 504 EVALUATION

Student’s Full Name:_________________________________   Date:______________

The above named student has been referred for potential eligibility under Section 504 due to a physical or mental impairment.  Please complete the following information and return to the person indicated below.  If the person indicated is not the student’s parent, a Release of Information Consent form is attached.  Thank you for your information and timeliness!

1.  Medical Diagnosis:

a.
Is the disability/impairment temporary?   _____Yes   _____No

b. If temporary, what is the anticipated duration?______________________

2.  Which major life activities are affected?  How?

	_______ Walking
	________ Speaking
	_______ Seeing

	_______ Breathing
	________ Self-Care
	_______ Learning

	_______ Hearing
	________ Manual Tasks
	_______ Working 


Explain:  _________________________________________________________


3. Medical Treatment Plan (include medications and/or assistive devices):

4. Recommendations or additional comments:

_________________________________  _____________________________________  ____________

Signature of Physician                              Printed Name                                Date

Please return to:

_______________________________  _________________________  ____________

Name/Title                                                  School

_________________________________________  ____________________________

Address                                                                         Telephone Number



APPENDIX D

Date: _______________________  Date of Initiation of Plan: _______________________

SECTION 504 ACCOMMODATION PLAN

Student: ______________________________ Building: ______________________ Grade: ______

Eligibility:

	(
	The student has or is believed to have a physical or mental impairment
	_____ Yes
	_____ No

	
	If yes, what is it? _______________________________________________________________________

	(
	A written medical notice documenting the physical or mental impairment is provided by the appropriate medical or health care
	_____ Yes
	_____ No

	
	professional.
	

	
	If yes, date of notice? ___________________________________________________________________

	(
	The impairment substantially limits one or more of the student’s major life activities.
	_____ Yes
	_____ No

	
	If yes, what is it? _______________________________________________________________________

	
	How is it “substantial?”__________________________________________________________________

	
	__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________


The educational team certifies this student to be eligible for 504 accommodations based on the attached evaluation reports       _____Yes  _____ No

(Attach medical report(s) and/or psychological evaluation(s) along with teacher observations, test results, and any other pertinent information such as grades or work samples.)

Accommodations:__________________________________________________________ Accommodations/Adaptations                    Responsibility                             Location










Signature of Team Members                             Title                                             Agree       Disagree










(Copies provided to guardian, principal, classroom teachers, and counselors.)

ANNUAL REVIEW

Date        Continue Plan  (Comments)                        Counselor                     Parent(s)









(Significant changes should be written on a new form and attached to the originals.)


APPENDIX E

Nondiscrimination

The district shall promote nondiscrimination and an environment free of harassment based on an individual’s race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, marital status or age of any other persons with whom the individual associates.

In keeping with requirements of federal and state law, the district strives to remove any vestige of discrimination in employment, assignment and promotion of personnel; in educational opportunities and services offered students; in student assignment to schools and classes; in student discipline; in location and use of facilities; in educational offerings and materials; and in accommodating the public at public meetings.

The Board encourages staff to improve human relations within the schools and to establish channels through which citizens can communicate their concerns to the administration and the Board.

The superintendent shall appoint and make known the individuals to contact on issues concerning the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title VI, Title VII, Title IX and other civil rights or discrimination issues. 1
Federal Civil rights laws prohibit discrimination against an individual because he/she has opposed any discrimination act or practice or because that person has filed a charge, testified, assisted or participate din an investigation, proceeding or hearing.  The ADA further prohibits anyone from coercing, intimidating, threatening or interfering with an individual for exercising the rights guaranteed under the Act.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

	ORS 192.630
	ORS 659.870
	OAR 581-015-0054

	ORS 326.051 (1)(e)
	ORS 659A.006
	OAR 581-021-0045

	ORS 342.934 (3)
	ORS 659A.009
	OAR 581-021-0046

	ORS 659.805
	ORS 659A.233
	OAR 581-021-0049

	ORS 659.815
	
ORS 659A.409
	OAR 581-022-1140

	ORS 659.850
	
	

	ORS 659.865
	
	


Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sections 6101-6107.

Age Discrimination In Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. Sections 621-634.

American with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101-12213; 29 CFR Part 1630 (2000); 28 CFR Part 35 (2000).

Equal Pay Act of 1963, as amended, 29 U.S.C. Section 206(d).

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. Sections 791, 793 and 794.

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. Sections 1681-1683; 34 CFR Part 106 (2000).

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000(d).

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000(e).

Wygant v. Jackson Board of Education, 476 U.S. 267 (1989).
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Oregon School Boards Association Selected Sample Policy 

 ADVANCE \y 140Discrimination Complaint Procedure

Complaints regarding the interpretation or application of the district’s nondiscrimination policy shall be processed in accordance with the following procedures:

Informal Procedure
Any person who feels that he/she has been discriminated against should discuss the matter with the building principal, who shall in turn investigate the complaint and respond to the complainant within [five] school days.  If this response is not acceptable to the complainant, he/she may initiate formal procedures.

If the building principal is the subject of the complaint, the individual may file a complaint directly with the superintendent.  If the superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the complainant may be filed with the Board chairman.

Formal Procedure
Step I:
A written complaint must be filed with the building principal within [five] school days of receipt of the response to the informal complaint.  The building principal shall further investigate, decide the merits of the complaint and determine the action to be taken, if any, and reply, in writing, to the complainant within [10] school days.

Step II:
If the complainant wishes to appeal the decision of the principal, he/she may submit a written appeal to the superintendent within [five] school days after receipt of the building principal’s response to the complaint.  The superintendent shall meet with all parties involved, as necessary, make a decision and respond, in writing, to the complaint within [10] school days.

Step III:
If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision of the superintendent, a written appeal may be filed with the Board within [five] school days of receipt of the superintendent’s response to Step II.  In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their representative at the next regular or special Board meeting.  A copy of the Board’s decision shall be sent to the complainant within [10] days of this meeting.

If the complainant is not satisfied after exhausting local complaint procedures, or 90 days, whichever occurs first, he/she may appeal in writing to the Superintendent of Public Instruction.

APPENDIX G

Oregon School Boards Association Selected Sample Policy

Discrimination Complaint Form





Name of Person Filing Complaint

 Date

 School or Activity

Student/Parent      Employee      Nonemployee   (Job applicant)

Type of discrimination:
Race
Color


Religion


Sex
National Origin

Disability

Marital Status
Age



Sexual Orientation]

Specific complaint: (Please provide detailed information including names, dates, places, activities and results of informal discussion.)

Remedy requested:

The complaint form should be mailed or taken to the building principal.  [Direct complaints related to educational programs and services may be made to the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights.  Direct complaints related to employment may be filed with the Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries, Civil Rights Division, or the U.S. Department of Labor, Equal Employment Opportunities Commission.]
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APPENDIX H

PROGRAM AND PHYSICAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS

	SECTION 504


	Prior to

6/3/77
	On or after 6/3/77
	On or after 1/18/91
	On or after 1/26/92

	
	EXISTING 

FACILITITES

34 CFR § 104.22

*”Program

Accessibility”

Standard
	NEW

CONSTRUCTION OR 

**ALTERATION

34 CFR § 104.23

American National Standards Institute

Standards

(ANSI-Rev. 1971)
	NEW CONSTRUCTION OR

**ALTERATIONS

34 CFR § 104.23

Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards (UFAS)

	
	
	
	

	TITLE III OF AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT
	EXISTING FACILITIES

28 CFR § 35.150

*”Program Accessibility” standard
	NEW CONSTRUCTION OR 

**ALTERATION

28 CFR § 35.151

***UFAS or Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines (ADAAG)


*  “Program Accessibility” does not require an agency to make each of its existing facilities accessible.  Barriers to access in existing facilities may exist provided the agency has an effective plan in place to permit people with disabilities to access to the benefits of the program in question.

** To invoke “stricter” standards of new construction based upon an alteration to an existing facility, the alteration must be one made “in a manner that affects or could affect the usability of the facility or part of the facility” that was altered.  If the “stricter” standard of new construction applies due to alteration, only the part of the facility that was altered in a way that affects usability will be subject to the “stricter” standard of new construction.

***Under Title II (28 CFR 35.151©), a public entity may elect to use either UFAS or ADAAG to measure accessibility of post-January 1992 facility design, construction, and alteration.
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504 Accommodation
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PUBLIC EDUCATION





Individual Education Plan


(I.E.P.)





Related services





Specially designed instruction





Education designed to ensure equal opportunity





IDEA Eligible





YES





Not 


eligible





NO





Student’s Name:____________________________________________________Date:___________________________





District:________________________________Resident School:_____________________________Grade:_________





Qualifying 504/ADA Impairment:_______________________________________________________________________





Sources of information for completing Manifestation Determination (attach copies).





_____ Functional Behavior Assessment	_____ Interviews conducted


_____ Assessment/evaluations	_____ Direct observation


_____ Diagnostic information	_____ Information from Parents


_____ 504 documents	_____Other:___________________________________





Behavior incident:	


	


	


General building policy or district policy which relates to the behavior in questions:	


	


	


Proposed disciplinary action:	


	





A:  504 Plan of Accomodation





Were the child’s Section 504 plan and placement appropriate in relationship to the 


behavior subject to the disciplinary    action?	( Yes     ( No





Were special education services, supplementary aids and services, and behavior


intervention strategies provieded consistent with the child’s Section 504 plan and placements?	( Yes     ( No





Did the child’s disability impair th eability of the child to understand the impact and 


consequences of the behavior subject to disciplinary action?	( Yes     ( No





Did the child’s disability impair the ability of the child to control the behavior subject to


disciplinary action?	( Yes     ( No





If the answer to any of the questions is no then you must conclude the behavior is a manifestation of the disability.








B:  Nature of the Disability





1.  Describe the child’s 504 impairment?  (Include any behavioral characteristics and severity).	


	


	


2.  What major life functions are impacted by the child’s disability?  (Include a description that impedes academic


     and/or other social performance.)	


	


	


3.  To what extent, are those major life areas impacted by the child’s disability?  (Include a description of the child’s


     strengths, deficits, and coping/compensating strategies.)	


	


	





If the child’s disability impaired his/her ability to understand the impact or consequence of his/her behavior or to control his/her behavior, the behavior must be considered a manifestation of his/her disability.





32





40








� This document is your notice of rights.


1 Districts are reminded that the district is required to notify students and employees of the name, office address and telephone number of the employee or employees appointed.
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